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TABLE 2—MINIMUM AND MAXIMUM CIVIL PENALTIES—ADJUSTED FOR INFLATION, EFFECTIVE AUGUST 
20, 2009—Continued 

United States 
Code Citation Civil penalty description Minimum 

penalty 

Adjusted 
minimum 
penalty 

Maximum pen-
alty amount 

when last set 
or adjusted 

pursuant to law 

Maximum pen-
alty amount 

49 U.S.C. 
46301(a)(1), (4).

Violation of 49 U.S.C. ch. 449 (except secs. 
44902, 44903(d), 44907(a)–(d)(1)(A), 
44907(d)(1)(C)–(f), 44908, and 44909), or 
49 U.S.C. 46302 or 46303, a regulation pre-
scribed, or order issued thereunder by an in-
dividual (except an airman serving as an air-
man), any person not operating an aircraft 
for the transportation of passengers or prop-
erty for compensation, or a small business 
concern.

N/A N/A $10,000 per 
violation, 
reset 12/12/ 
2003.

$11,000 per 
violation. 

49 U.S.C. 114(v) .. Violation of any other provision of title 49 
U.S.C. or of 46 U.S.C. ch. 701, a regulation 
prescribed, or order issued under there-
under.

N/A N/A NA ................... $10,000 per 
violation. 

§ 1503.403 Delegation of authority. 
The Administrator delegates the fol-

lowing authority to the Chief Counsel 
and the Deputy Chief Counsel for En-
forcement, which authority may be re-
delegated as necessary: 

(a) To initiate and assess civil pen-
alties under 49 U.S.C. 114 and 46301 and 
this subpart for a violation a TSA re-
quirement; 

(b) To compromise civil penalties ini-
tiated under this subpart; and 

(c) To refer cases to the Attorney 
General of the United States, or the 
delegate of the Attorney General, for 
the collection of civil penalties. 

§ 1503.405 Injunctions. 
Whenever it is determined that a per-

son has engaged, or is about to engage, 
in any act or practice constituting a 
violation of a TSA requirement, the 
Chief Counsel or the Deputy Chief 
Counsel for Enforcement may request 
the Attorney General of the United 
States, or the delegate of the Attorney 
General, to bring an action in the ap-
propriate United States district court 
for such relief as is necessary or appro-
priate, including mandatory or prohibi-
tive injunctive relief, interim equitable 
relief, and punitive damages, as pro-
vided by 49 U.S.C. 114 and 46107. 

§ 1503.407 Military personnel. 
If a report made under this part indi-

cates that, while performing official 
duties, a member of the Armed Forces, 

or a civilian employee of the Depart-
ment of Defense who is subject to the 
Uniform Code of Military Justice (10 
U.S.C. chapter 47), has violated a TSA 
requirement, an agency official will 
send a copy of the report to the appro-
priate military authority for such dis-
ciplinary action as that authority con-
siders appropriate and a report to the 
Administrator thereon. 

§ 1503.409 Service of documents. 

(a) General. This section governs 
service of documents required to be 
made under this part. 

(b) Type of service. A person may 
serve documents by: 

(1) Personal delivery; 
(2) Mail, or 
(3) Electronic mail or facsimile 

transmission, if consented to in writing 
by the person served, except that such 
service is not effective if the party 
making service receives credible infor-
mation indicating that the attempted 
service did not reach the person to be 
served. 

(c) If a party serves a pleading on an-
other party during the course of hear-
ing proceedings by electronic mail or 
facsimile transmission, the party mak-
ing service must file with the Enforce-
ment Docket Clerk a copy of the con-
sent of the receiving party to accept 
such method of service. 

(d) Date of service. The date of service 
will be: 

(1) The date of personal delivery. 
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